Public Document Pack

BEST ACHIEVING
COUNCIL OF THE YEAR

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Barry Keel
Chief Executive

Plymouth City Council
Civic Centre
Plymouth PLI 2AA

www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy

Date: 13-1-2012

Please ask for: Helen Wright, Democratic Support Officer
T: 01752 304022 E: helen.wright@plymouth.gov.uk

CUSTOMERS AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY PANEL

Date: Monday 23 January 2012
Time: 4pm
Venue: Council House, next to the Civic Centre

Members:
Councillor Thompson, Chair.

Councillor Peter Smith, Vice Chair.

Councillors Mrs Beer, Mrs Bowyer, Churchill, Davey, Delbridge, Martin Leaves, Penberthy,
Reynolds, John Smith and Vincent.

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf.
Members and officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the meeting.
Please note that unless the chair of the meeting agrees, mobile phones should be switched off

and speech, video and photographic equipment should not be used in meetings.

Barry Keel
Chief Executive



CUSTOMERS AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY PANEL

AGENDA
PART | - PUBLIC MEETING
l. APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Panel Members.
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this
agenda.

3.  MINUTES (Pages | - 14)

The Panel will be asked to confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 21 November
2011 and to note the minutes of the task and finish group on anti social behaviour in
Carlton Close and Channel Park Avenue held on 28 November 201 | (to follow).

4. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS

To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought
forward for urgent consideration.

5. TRACKING RESOLUTIONS AND FEEDBACK FROM (Pages 15 - 18)
THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT
BOARD

The panel will monitor the progress of previous resolutions and receive any relevant
feedback from the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board.

6. PLYMOUTH LIFE CENTRE AND LEISURE RELATED (Pages 19 - 22)
PROJECTS PROGRAMME UPDATE

The panel will receive the Culture, Sport and Leisure Programme Director’s report on
the progress of the Plymouth Life Centre and leisure related projects programme.

1. JOINT FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING (Pages 23 - 24)
REPORT (FORMERLY COMMUNITY SERVICES)

The Director of People will provide an update on the ‘red’ budget risks for the former
Community Services department (which were identified in the Joint Finance and
Performance Monitoring Report).



8. WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 25 - 26)
The panel will review its work programme 201 1/12.
9. EXEMPT BUSINESS

To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act
1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of
business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph(s) of Part | of Schedule |12A of the Act, as amended
by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

PART Il (PRIVATE MEETING)

AGENDA

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE

that under the law, the Panel is entitled to consider certain items in private. Members of the

public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.

NIL.



This page is intentionally left blank



38.

39.

Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny
Panel

Monday 21 November 2011

PRESENT:

Councillor Thompson, in the Chair.

Councillor Vincent, Vice Chair.

Councillors Mrs Beer, Mrs Bowyer, Churchill, Davey, Delbridge, Martin Leaves,
Penberthy and Wildy (substitute for Councillor Peter Smith).

Apologies for absence: Councillors Mrs Bowyer and Peter Smith (Vice Chair).

Also in attendance: Councillor Bowyer (Cabinet Member for Finance, Property
and People), Carole Burgoyne (Director for Community Services), James Coulton
(Assistant Director for Culture, Sport and Leisure), David Greenwood (Everyone
Active), Patrick Hartop (Senior Policy, Performance and Partnership Adviser),
Tony Hopwood (Programmes Director) and Jon Senior (Everyone Active).

The meeting started at 5.00 pm and finished at 6.30 pm.
Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes,
so they may be subject to change. Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm

whether these minutes have been amended.

APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR

Agreed that Councillor Vincent is appointed as Vice Chair for this particular meeting.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The following declarations of interests were made in accordance with the Code of
Conduct in relation to items under consideration at this meeting —

Name Subject Reason Interest
Councillor Minute 43 Taxi driver Personal
Michael Leaves  Plymouth Life Centre

and related leisure

projects programme

update
Councillor John Minute 43 Taxi driver Personal
Smith Plymouth Life Centre

and related leisure
projects programme
update

Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel Monday 21 November 201



40.

41.

42.

43.

Page 2

Councillor Minute 43 employed by Citybus Personal
Vincent Plymouth Life Centre

and related leisure

projects  programme

update

MINUTES

The panel agreed that the minutes of the meeting held on 24 October 201 | are
confirmed as a correct record.

CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of Chair’s urgent business.

TRACKING RESOLUTIONS AND FEEDBACK FROM THE OVERVIEW
AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD

The responses provided to the tracking resolutions (minutes 23(k), 23(m), 23(p))
would be dealt with under minute 43.

PLYMOUTH LIFE CENTRE AND LEISURE RELATED PROJECTS
PROGRAMME UPDATE

The Director for Community Services submitted an update report on the Plymouth
Life Centre and leisure related projects programme. The update highlighted the
following main arrears —
(@) Plymouth Life Centre —
e internal works were progressing well, including the tiling,
changing rooms and sanitary wares, the glazed balustrades and

the specialist lighting;

e  works due for completion by the end of November 2011,

included —

> the external cladding

> the final water fill of the main swimming pool

| 2 main swimming pool seating

> installation of the specialist sprung floors in the main

hall and the multi purpose dance studios

e the Programme Director’s report stated that the project was
on programme for a practical completion on 16 January 2012
and still remained on budget; (Councillor Bowyer noted that
we had recently been made aware that there would be a slight
delay in the practical completion date and this would not e
reached on 27 February 2012);

Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel Monday 21 November 2011



(b)

Page 3

e members of the panel had visited the site and building on 25
October 201 I;

Leisure Management Contract —

° Everyone Active continued to develop the mobilisation of the
Plymouth Life Centre and had brought in a number of new
resources including a sales manager, an activities manager and
a manager for Brickfields and Plympton Pool;

° the SHOKK gym within Brickfields Sport Centre would be
relocated from the ground floor to the first floor (adjacent to
the main gym); this would improve attendance and reduce

staffing costs);

° an Everyone Active’s visitor booth would be installed in the
foyer of the Mayflower Centre to handle enquiries;

) details of the recommended opening hours for Plympton
swimming pool and Brickfields Sports Centre were provided;

Events Field -

° the design and delivery of the new events field formed part of
phase 2 of the Plymouth Life contract; once the scheme had
been developed it would be shared with the panel;

Skate Park —

° the skate park had opened to the public on 29 October 201 I;

) the handover of the project had been slightly delayed but it
had been delivered within budget;

) feedback received from users had been extremely positive.

Jon Senior and David Greenwood representatives from Everyone Active, the leisure
contractor, provided an overview of the service, which included the following main

points —

(f)

(®)

Sports and Leisure Management Limited (SLM) was formed in 1987
and was the company behind Everyone Active; Everyone Active
operated and managed local leisure centres (18 local authority
contracts and 60 managed sites across the country) and had won a
number of awards including ‘Inspiring Clubs Award’;

Everyone Active’s mission was to encourage everyone to participate
in 30 minutes of moderate physical activity five times a week;

Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel Monday 21 November 2011



(h)

(i)

()

(k)

()

Page 4

Everyone Active had been operating/managing Plympton swimming
pool and Brickfields Sports Centre since | September 201 [;

with regard to Plympton swimming pool several changes had been
implemented, which included —

e the temperature of the water had been increased;

e the pool programme had been changed to include dedicated
swimming lanes; 700 people had enrolled for swimming lessons
compared previously to 480;

customer feedback had been positive and attendance levels at the
pool were steadily increasing;

an investment of £10,000 had been made at both sites for branding,
signage, etc;

the Plymouth Life Centre was the most exciting leisure facility in the
United Kingdom and was the flagship for both the city and the
company;

the gym facility would contain |57 stations and fitted with
equipment that would appeal to all ages (including full internet
access);

equipment would be provided for visual impaired users, and
rehabilitation kit for people with medical conditions;

it was anticipated that one million people would visit the centre in
the first year.

The following responses were provided to questions raised by the panel —

P

C))

operational issues relating to the use of the car park on Plymouth
Argyle match days would need to be addressed;

a health and wellbeing manager had been appointed to the senior
management team of Everyone Active; the manager would work
closely with GPs and health professionals in providing a service
which would offer exercise programmes, referral and pain
management in order to enable people to return to work;

a multi purpose functional meeting room at Brickfields would be
reinstated on the ground floor which had previously been occupied
by the SHOKK gym;

Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel Monday 21 November 2011



(t)

(u)

v)

(2)

(bb)

Page 5

currently applications to become a member of the Plymouth Life
Centre and to register for a free Everyone Active card could only
be done online, however a visitor centre would be based in the
Mayflower Centre to deal with all enquires;

data from the Everyone Active membership card could be used to
understand who used the centre, at what time, the activities
undertaken and the area in which the individuals lived; to
encourage people to become more active or to target priority
areas discount cards or incentives could be provided;

the information provided by Everyone Active would be extremely
useful in targeting areas of the city and working with GPs and
health professionals;

the scope to subsidise bus routes in the medium term was limited;
however, if there was a requirement for a new bus service and it
was commercially viable then it could be provided by the bus
operators;

the practical completion date for the centre was 27 February 2012
with an anticipated opening date of 24/25 March 2012;

a meeting would be held with Plymouth Argyle Football Club
regarding the management of the car park;

a written response would be provided to the panel regarding the
relationship of the Business Improvement District for the Plymouth
Waterfront (which included Mount Wise and Tinside) and
Everyone Active;

people had the opportunity to register for My Everyone Active,
which created individual activity plans; if monthly targets were
achieved for the activities undertaken, such as cycling to the centre,
walking the dog, etc then rewards for those achievements would be
given such as a free cup of coffee or a free swim;

the procurement process had commenced for a partner to deliver
the ice provision for the city; the existing ice provision would
remain open until the new facility had been delivered in order to
maintain continuity;

a revenue budget pressure had been identified for 2012/13, as a
result of maintaining the existing ice provision until the new facility
had been delivered; this would be managed as part of the overall
budget setting;

Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel Monday 21 November 2011



44,

Page 6

(cc) local jobs had been created at the Brickfields Sports Centre.

Responses provided to the tracking resolutions are attached as a appendix to these
minutes.

The panel recommended to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board that
other scrutiny panels and the Health and Wellbeing Board consider the wider
benefits to the community of the Plymouth Life Centre in delivering the city’s
priorities.

The panel agreed to invite representatives from Everyone Active to attend its
meeting scheduled to be held on 12 March 2012 to provide an update.

JOINT FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT
SCORE CARDS

Patrick Hartop, Senior Policy, Performance and Partnership Adviser provided an
overview of the score cards for Community Services and Corporate Support, which
included the following main areas —

(@) Community Services —

° there was a forecast overspend in Adult Social Care of
£0.750m, which assumed that all delivery plans were achieved
by the year end; the variations were attributed to an increase
in supported living packages and some continuing health care
funded cases becoming the council’s responsibility; however,
efforts were being made to reduce these levels;

° there was a forecast overspend in Culture, Sport and Leisure
of £0.032m as a result of an operating deficit on the
Mayflower Centre, which the council has a longstanding
agreement to underwrite;

° the forecast overspend in environmental services of £0.234m
had reduced to nil which had been mainly due to the
forecasted reductions in tonnages going to landfill (79,000
tones to a projected 77,5000 tonnes);

° there was a projected £0.027m under spend in safer
communities which was as a result of additional
commissioning savings and efficiencies in business support;

(b) Corporate Support —
° customer services — social care complaints performance had
improved significantly due to the increased focus and

assistance from legal services in helping with the very heavy
court costs;

Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel Monday 21 November 2011



45.

46.

47.

Page 7

° finance, assets and efficiencies — the cumulative average time
to process new housing and council tax benefit claims was
currently 28.9 days against an annual target of 20 days; there
had been a 10 per cent increase in workload from the
previous year which had impacted on performance;

national non domestic rate collection was above target at
65.85 per cent against the in year target of 60.65 per cent;

° Human Resources and Organisational Development -
sickness statistics continued to have a downward trend

towards the council’s target of 6 days per FTE;

° ICT — the number of Freedom of Information requests
processed had improved;

° Democracy and Governance — the deficit had been reduced
through ongoing efficiency savings and reductions in general
running expenses in legal services.

The following responses were provided to questions raised by the panel —

(c) the support services overview and scrutiny panel was considering the
sickness statistics at its meeting on 24 November 201 [;

(d) Community Services had the highest proportion of front line
workers, such as refuse collectors, which attributed to the high
levels of sickness.

The panel agreed to review the ‘red’ budget risks for Community Services (which
included management of toilets, playgrounds, bowling greens and city water
features).

Bl ANNUAL SCRUTINY REPORT

The panel considered its draft bi annual scrutiny report.

The panel noted its bi annual scrutiny report.

WORK PROGRAMME

The panel noted its work programme.

EXEMPT BUSINESS

There were no items of exempt business.

APPENDIX | (Pages | - 6)

Please note —

Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel Monday 21 November 2011



Page 8

Responses provided relating to pending tracking resolutions are attached as
appendix | to these minutes.

Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel Monday 21 November 2011



TRACKING RESOLUTIONS
Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Appendix | (to the minutes of

21.11.11)

Date/Minute Resolution Explanation/Minute Officer Progress Target
Number Date

Min. 23(k) the panel sought clarification on Tony Tony Hopwood, Programmes Director has | 21
Plymouth whether the initial problems Hopwood been requested to provide a response. November
Life Centre | encountered with Everyone Active’s 2011

and Related | Website had been addressed.

Leisure

Projects

12/09/11

Response:

All initial teething problems with Everyone Active’s website have been resolved.

Min. 23(m) the panel sought the details of the Tony Tony Hopwood, Programmes Director has | 21
Plymouth provision of direct bus services to the Hopwood been requested to provide a response November
Life Centre | Plymouth Life Centre from across the 2011

and Related | city and the frequency of the services,

Leisure particularly at weekends and evenings

Projects

12/09/11

Response:

It is not envisaged that the existing bus service provision will be amended as a result of the Plymouth Life Centre. The facility is located directly adjacent to
the Milehouse Park and Ride and is also served by bus stops along Outland Road and Alma Road. See timetables provided below for Sunday access.

6 obed



Min. 23(p)
12/09/1 |

the panel sought clarification on the
following issues —

|. the joining up of the cycle routes to
allow people to cycle to the facility;

2. the draft travel plan making no
reference to Plymouth Argyle home
matches;

3. the unquantifiable car movement
targets;

4. the incentives on a reduction in the
ticket price rather than a cup of coffee

Tony
Hopwood

Tony Hopwood, Programmes Director has
been requested to provide a response.

See Response to Min. 23(p) below

21
November
2011

Responses:

l. No physical works are proposed as a result of the delivery of the Plymouth Life Centre or as part of the Everyone Active contract. However, the
development of the Central Park Master plan works will improve cycle access throughout the park.

0} abed



2. Reference to PAFC home matches is made in Everyone Active’s draft Car Park Management Plan as follows:

During match days and during larger special events at Plymouth Life Centre, SLM will employ ‘car park stewards’. The number of stewards employed will be
dependant [sic] on the anticipated number of attendees at the event.

It is expected that the number of Stewards will be:
Event attendance <500 = | steward

Event attendance >500 = 2 stewards

Plymouth Argyle Home Match = 2 stewards

Stewards will need to be in place at least 90 minutes prior to the start of any event or football match, and will be in radio contact with the Leisure Centre Duty
Manager at all times.

These numbers will be reviewed by the Leisure Centre General Manager dfter the first few months of events and football matches.

The stewards will control access to the Plymouth Life Centre car park and levy a car parking charge for which a ticket (receipt) will be issued. The full
value of this charge will be refundable when the ticket is presented at the main reception desk, when a centre user pays for / books in to an activity at
Plymouth Life Centre. From research at other similar Football Grounds it is felt that a charge of £10 would be appropriate to achieve this balance, this
will be reviewed after the first month of football games, and feedback from centre users will be assessed.

Visiting Team / Spectator Coaches to the Life Centre will be parked in the adjacent Park and Ride car park, thus leaving more car parking spaces
available for general users of the Life Centre and Park even during events. As determined in the Event Management Plan, large events will not be
booked to clash with Plymouth Argyle Home fixtures.

Until the facility has been operational for a few months it is not possible to accurately assess the car movements in and around the site. Further
complicating this is the fact that there are still ‘Section 2’ works to be undertaken after the Plymouth Life Centre is open. These works include
demolition of the Mayflower and Central Park Pools and the delivery of additional car parking spaces. These works are scheduled to be completed
within 6 months of the opening of the Plymouth Life Centre so it will be some time thereafter that an accurate assessment of traffic movements in
and around that site can be established.

Everyone Active is reviewing Plymouth City Council’s Green Travel Pass scheme and considering how it may offer this scheme to colleagues.

| | 8bed



Timetables for Buses Serving Plymouth Life Centre stops on Sunday

Sundays & Bank Holidays

Service Number

ROYAL PARADE [A17]

RAILWAY STATION Saltash Rd
MILEHOUSE Alma Road

LOWER HAM Careswell Ave

KINGS TAMERTON Steph.Way
WEST PARK Shops

RINGMORE WAY Shaldon Crescent
HOLLY PARK Lakeview Close
WHITLEIGH Green

Service Number

WHITLEIGH Green

HOLLY PARK Lakeview Close
RINGMORE WAY Shaldon Crescent
WEST PARK Shops

KINGS TAMERTON Steph.Way
LOWER HAM Careswell Ave
MILEHOUSE Central Park

RAILWAY STATION Saltash Rd
ROYAL PARADE

16B

0940

0943 then
0947 at
0951 these
0955 mins.
1000 past
1002 each
1005 hour

16B

0908 then
0910 at
0912 these
0918 mins.
0922 past
0926 each
0929 hour
0935

16B

40
43
47
51
29
00
02
05

16B

08
10
12
18
22
26
29
35

until

until

16B

1740
1743
1747
1751
1755
1800
1802
1805
1905

16B

1808
1810
1812
1818
1822
1826
1829
1835

16B

1840
1843
1847
1851
1855
1900
1902

2005

16B
1908

1910
1912
1918
1922
1926
1929
1935

16B
1940
1943
1947
1951
1955
2000
2002

2105

16B
2008

2010
2012
2018
2022
2026
2029
2035

16B

2040
2043
2047
2051
2055
2100
2102

2205

16B
2108

2110
2112
2118
2122
2126
2129
2135

16B
2140
2143
2147
2151
2155
2200
2202

2305

16B
2208

2210
2212
2218
2222
2226
2229
2235

16B
2240
2243
2247
2251
2255
2300
2302

16B
2308

2310
2312
2318
2322
2326

2| ebed



SUNDAYS AND BANK HOLIDAYS

Service Number 29
ROYAL PARADE [A4] 0910 then
RAILWAY STATION Saltash Rd 0913 at
MILEHOUSE Alma Road 0917 these
ST BUDEAUX Square 0924 mins.
WEST PARK Post Office 0929 past
TRANSIT WAY Shopping Village 0933 each
CROWNHILL Fire Station 0937 hour
DERRIFORD HOSPITAL 0942

Service 29 providing services up to every 30 minutes for most of the day with services operating hourly evenings and during the day Sundays and Bank

holidays.

Service 29 together with Services 43/A/B providing buses up to every 5 minutes for most of the day Monday to Saturday and in excess of every 20

29
10
13
17
24
29
33
37
42

until

29
1710
1713
1717
1724
1729
1733
1737
1742

Service Number

DERRIFORD HOSPITAL
CROWNHILL High Level
TRANSIT WAY Shopping Village
WEST PARK Shops

ST BUDEAUX Square
MILEHOUSE Central Park
RAILWAY STATION Saltash Rd
WESTERN APPROACH Comet
ROYAL PARADE

minutes Sundays and Bank Holidays between St Budeaux and the City Centre via Milehouse.

29

0826

0832 then
0837 at
0843 these
0848 mins.
0855 past
0858 each
0901 hour
0905

29
26
32
37
43
48
55
58
01
05

until

29
1726
1732
1737
1743
1748
1755
1758
1801
1805

¢} ebed



SUNDAYS AND BANK HOLIDAYS

Service Number 43 43 43 4 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43
ROYAL PARADE [Ad4] 0840 then at 00 20 40 1700 1720 1740 1820 1920 2020 2120 2220
RAILWAY STATION Saltash Rd 0843 thesemins. 03 23 43 1703 1723 1743 1823 1923 2023 2123 2223
MILEHOUSE Alma Road 0747 0807 0827 0847 past each 07 27 A7 until 1707 1727 1747 1827 1927 2027 2127 2227
ST BUDEAUX Square 0754 0814 0834 0854 hour 14 34 54 1714 1734 1754 1834 1934 2034 2134 2234
ERNESETTLE Lakeside Drive 0801 0821 0841 0301 21 41 O 1721 1741 1801 1841 1940 2040 2140 2240
ERNESETTLE Bull and Bush 0807 0827 0847 0907 27 47 07 1727 1747 1807 1847 1944 2044 2144 2244
Service Number 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43
ERNESETTLE Lakeside Drive 0801 0821 0841 then 01 21 41 1701 1721 1741 1801 1841 1940 2040 2140 2240
ERNESETTLE Bull and Bush 0807 0827 0847 at O7 27 47 1707 1727 1747 1807 1845 1944 2044 2144 2244

ST BUDEAUX Square 0817 0837 0857 these 17 37 57 1717 1737 1757 1817 1854 1953 2053 2153 2253
MILEHOUSE Central Park 0824 0844 0904 mins. 24 44 (04  until 1724 1744 1804 1824 1901 2000 2100 2200 2300
RAILWAY STATION Saltash Rd 0827 0847 0907 past 27 47 O7 1727 1807 1904 2003 2103 2203

WESTERN APPROACH Comet 0831 0851 0911 each 31 51 1 1731 1811 1907 2006 2106 2206

ROYAL PARADE 0835 0855 0915 hour 33 55 15 1735 1815 1911 2010 2110 2210

Service 43 providing services up to every 10 minutes for most of the day Monday to Saturday with services operating up to every 30 minutes evenings
and up to every 20 minutes during the day and hourly evenings Sundays and Bank Holidays.

Service 43 together with Services 29, 43A/B providing buses up to every 5 minutes for most of the day Monday to Saturday and in excess of every 20
minutes Sundays and Bank Holidays between 5t Budeaux and the City Centre via Milehouse.

1 ebed



TRACKING RESOLUTIONS

Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Date/Minute | Resolution Explanation/Minute Officer Progress Target
Number Date
Min. 8 the panel agreed the Lead The membership of the Task and Finish Group has been confirmed | 28 November
Draft Work membership of the Task and Officer as — 201 |
Programme Finish Group for the anti (Sue
201 1/12 social behaviour in Compton Warren) Councillor Thompson (Chair)
Vale — DSO Councillor Churchill
Councillor John Smith
Councillor Penberthy
Completed
Min. 23(k) the panel sought clarification Tony Tony Hopwood, Programmes Director has been requested to 21 November
Plymouth Life on whether the initial Hopwood | provide a response. 201 |
Centre and problems encountered with Completed
Related Leisure | Everyone Active’s website
Projects had been addressed.
12/09/11
Min. 23(m) the panel sought the details Tony Tony Hopwood, Programmes Director has been requested to 21 November
Plymouth Life of the provision of direct Hopwood | provide a response. 201 |
Centre and bus services to the Completed
Related Leisure | Plymouth Life Centre from
Projects across the city and the
12/09/11 frequency of the services,
particularly at weekends and
evenings.

G| ebed

G wal| epuaby



Min. 23(p) the panel sought clarification Tony Tony Hopwood, Programmes Director has been requested to 21 November
12/09/11 on the following issues — Hopwood | provide a response. 201 |
Completed
I. the joining up of the cycle
routes to allow people to
cycle to the facility;
2. the draft travel plan
making no reference to
Plymouth Argyle home
matches;
3. the unquantifiable car
movement targets;
4, the incentives on a
reduction in the ticket price
rather than a cup of coffee.
Min. 35 the panel sought to provide | there was a need to review how Councillor Penberthy to provide information to DCI James Colwill. | November
Serious information to the police PCSOs recorded informal 2011
Acquisitive regarding the reporting intelligence, as Councillors had
Crime Figures | incidents to PCSOs. recently been made aware that
24/10/11 information received on an
informal basis was not logged and
was therefore not included in any
reported incidents data.
Min. 36 the panel agreed to the panel had been requested to Helen Panel members would be asked to choose two subjects (the 2| November
Work participate in the scrutiny consider participating in scrutiny Wright subjects could include scoping, chairing and leadership, questioning, | 2011
Programme training and to move the training. The training would be evaluation of evidence and supporting and getting the most out of
24/10/11 start time of the meeting delivered by the trainer meeting contributors). An email had been circulated to panel members on
from 4pm to 5pm. with the panel one hour prior to 25 October 201 I.
its meeting in November 2011, Completed
observing the panel meeting and
providing verbal feedback and
constructive criticism. A written
report would also be provided
following the meeting.
Min. 43 the panel agreed to invite Helen 12 March
Plymouth Life representatives from Wright 2012
Centre and Everyone Active to attend
Leisure Related | its meeting scheduled to be
Projects held on 12 March 2012 to
Programme provide an update.
Update

21/11/11

9} ebed



Min. 44 the panel agreed to review Helen 23 January
Joint Finance the ‘red’ budget risks for Wright 2012

and
Performance
Monitoring
Report Score
Cards

Community Services (which
included management of
toilets, playgrounds, bowling
greens and city water
features).

/| ebed



Overview and Scrutiny Management Board

delivering the city’s priorities

Date/min Resolution Explanation / Minute Response Explanation
number Irecommendation
Min. 29 the panel agreed to Giles Perritt to circulate the PID to panel members by 4 November The Overview and Scrutiny
Work recommend to the Overview | 201 1. Management Board requested
Programme and Scrutiny Management that a PID is drafted on social
12/09/11 Board — media prior to endorsing a
task and finish group.
I. the Overview and
Scrutiny Management
Board is asked to
endorse a task and
finish group on social
media, to be
undertaken by the
Customers and
Communities OSP.
Min. 34 the panel agreed to This item has been submitted to the next Overview and Scrutiny Completed The Overview and Scrutiny
Strategic recommend to the Overview | Management Board meeting scheduled for 14 December 201 I. Management Board agreed the
Framework for | and Scrutiny Management panel’s recommendations. U
Information and | Board to adopt the strategic Q
Adpvice Services | framework for information C(%
Framework and advice services 2012-15. R
24/10/11 o0
Min. 36 the panel agreed to formally | Councillors raised concerns regarding the provision of training during
Work raise the issue of the normal working hours, which proved difficult for those councillors in
Programme provision of training for full time employment to attend.
24/10/11 councillors outside of normal
working hours with the This item has been submitted to the next Overview and Scrutiny
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board meeting scheduled for 14 December 201 |.
Management Board.
Min. 43 the panel recommended to This item has been submitted to the next Overview and Scrutiny Completed the Overview and Scrutiny
Plymouth Life the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board Meeting scheduled for 14 December 201 I. Management Board agreed the
Centre and Management Board that panel’s recommendations.
Leisure Related | other scrutiny panels and the
Projects Health and Wellbeing Board
Programme consider the wider benefits
Update to the community of the
21/11/11 Plymouth Life Centre in

= Completed (once completed resolutions have been noted by the panel they will be removed from this document)
= Urgent - item not considered at last meeting or requires an urgent response



Page 19 Agenda ltem 6

CSL PROGRAMME BOARD

Overview & scrutiny Panel Update-

$nb4uhziq.doc



Page 20

CULTURE, SPORT & LEISURE PROGRAMME

Culture, Sport & Leisure Executive Programme Board

Culture, Sport & Leisure Programme Board

Leisure
Management
Project

Plymouth Life
Centre Project

PROGRAMME GOVERNANCE

A council-wide review of programme governance is underway and this will not be resolved
until after the results of the Senior Management Team restructure are known.

2.

2.1

2.1.1
2.1.2
2.1.3

PLYMOUTH LIFE CENTRE

UPDATE

Generally good progress on site. Significant management resources have been put in place
by Balfour Beatty to ensure that areas are being robustly driven forward in line with their
programme.

The main contractor for the Plymouth Life Centre has confirmed a final completion date
for the new facility. Balfour Beatty has announced it will be officially handing the building
over to the Council on Monday 27 February 2012. The Council and Everyone Active are
now putting plans in place to open the brand new facility over the weekend of Friday 23 to
Sunday 25 March 2012, following a period of internal fit-out and staff training.

Works in the coming period include:

Complete Leisure Pool fill and commence with water and environment heating
Complete Pool surround tiling and continue work around Dive Tower area
Complete Granwood flooring sealing

Complete Climb Zone HL lighting rig installation and prepare for Climbing Wall
completion

Continue Multi-Purpose Room fit out with Stage Electrics specialist package
commencement

Continue External works including lighting

Complete Bowls Floor installation

$nb4uhziq.doc Page 2 of 3



2.2
2.2.1

3.

3.1

3.1.1
3.1.2
3.1.3
3.14

Page 21

Continue with M+E services systems and commissioning
TRANSPORT HUB — CURRENT SITUATION:

The frame of the transport hub has been erected. Glass will be fitted in due course.

LEISURE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

UPDATE
Plympton and Brickfields continue to operate well with ever increasing usage.

The Life Centre internal fit out list is being refined and signage proposals are developed.
Everyone Active has requested to pre-order the majority of fit out items prior to the
Christmas break.

It has been agreed that the interim management arrangements for Plympton Swimming
Pool and Brickfields will continue until service commencement date.

Everyone Active has been asked to consider reintroducing the All Weather Pitch at
Manadon into their contract. A full set of contractual documents are being produced to be
sent across for consideration by Everyone Active on Friday 16 December. PCC is seeking
a response from Everyone Active early in the New Year. A response will be provided at
the next programme board.

4.

4.1
4.1.1
4.1.2

SKATE PARK

UPDATE - CURRENT SITUATION:
The skate park is now fully open and operational.

There have been issues regarding vandalism to the electricity control box that controls the
lighting on the site. These issues are being resolved and the Project Manager has attended
a meeting with Youth Services and representatives from the skate board and BMX
community to talk about what had been happening and potential solutions and also to get
feedback about the park.

$nb4uhziq.doc Page 3 of 3



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



10

11

12

Page

23

Agenda ltem 7

Community Services Delivery Plans Sept 'l |

APPENDIX C

Balancing the budget : Areas for

savings, efficiency gains or increase
income

Delivery
Plan

Savings Progress Update

2011/12 Budget Revised
£000 R/IAIG

Domiciliary Care Services: remodel in
house provision

Supported Living: remodelling of
services and standardisation of unit rates

Care Management Services: reviewing
of high cost packages and alternative
service provision

Day Care: remodelling of services and
standardisation of unit rates

Enabling and Floating Support:
remodelling of services and
standardisation of unit rates

Residential Care - Under 65:
remodelling of services and
standardisation of unit rates

Workforce re-modelling: linked to
CareFirst 6 and Charteris Business
Process Re-design

ADULT SOCIAL CARE TOTAL.:

2,321

Events, grants and other funds initiatives

Reduction in revenue support grants -
Theatre Royal & Pavilions

Library Service: modernisation of
service.

Museum: restructure

Transfer of assets: transfer of assets /
facilities to local community ownership.

CULTURE, SPORTS & LEISURE TOTAI

Reablement business case developed.

Delivered

Delivered

Delivered

Delivered or on track

On track

On track.

The delivery plans continue to be worked
through to achieve the required savings

On target saving realised. Pavilions site
market test will provide greater clarity on way
forward for achieving future year savings.

Library service review is continuing. £380k
savings on track through staff restructure
along with other actions within the service.

Savings realised through restructure.

Not due to commence until 2012/13, but
research underway




13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Community Services Delivery Plans Sept 'l |

Page 24
APPENDIX C

Performance and Intelligence:
rationalise performance management,
completion of government returns and data
analysis across the council. 1/3rd of total
planned savings applied to Community
Services at this early stage of
development

Community Services Staff included in

100 ringfence. Restructure currently in progress

Administration & Business Support
Review: Rationalise Business Support &
Administration across the council.

Community Services engaged in project
proposals but no firm savings yet identified.

Printing, Publicity and Advertising:
challenge the current demand across the
council and rationalise future publicity &
advertising activity. Notional saving for
department based on total council spend.

Community Services engaged in project

100 proposals but no firm savings yet identified.

Equalities: Transforming Translate
Plymouth to self financing model and other
reshaping of the service to reflect national
changes, local priorities & deliver
efficiency savings.

Post deleted and self financing model
established. NHS have signed a short term
SLA and negotiations over Longer Term
SLA are looking positive.

70

Bulky waste: Increase bulky waste
collection charge

The charges were increased on the 1st April

5 2011.

Management of Toilets: Transfer some Independent research into footfall is
public toilets from PCC to be maintained 200 A underway and a range of options will shortly
by others be presented to Cabinet Planning
Playgrounds: Transfer some Dialogue with the community sectgr is
) ’ 50 A underway and play spaces are being
playgrounds to local community ownership
surveyed
Bowling Greens: Transfer some bowling Planto increase fees from A;?rll 201.2 (Fee
) structure to be agreed), meetings with
greens to clubs / local community 160 A ) )
ownershi Bowling Clubs has taken place to discuss
P future options for alternative delivery models.
i ja: i f . .
Cemeteries & Cl.'ema.torla increase fees 300 A Charges were increased on 1st April 2011
above the rate of inflation
Rationalisation of Environmental Services 120 A Completed. Posts removed from
Structure establishment by 1 April 2011

City water features: to be delivered by
others

Annual maintenance was not undertaken
however, a long term solution is still needed
as water features are incurring cleaning
costs

Reduction in Senior Management:
consistent with other departmental plan,
objective of reducing senior management
by 20%

A range of options are currently being
considered

The Leisure Management contract has now
Leisure Management been awarded and will commence in
9 250 February 2012 so there will be no savings in
Contract ) .
the current year. Full year savings will occur
from 2012/13.
Review specialist placement spend 200 £217k identified to Sept 2011 A
SAVINGS FROM OTHER DELIVERY GR| 1,685
TOTAL OF PLANS FOR COMMUNITY S 4,686




Page 25

Work Programme 2011/12

P ) Agenda ltem 8
Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Work programme

J | A| S|  O|N J M
Policies
Sex Establishment Policy 18
Culture, Sport and Leisure
Plymouth Life Centre and Leisure Related
Project Programme including Leisure
Management Contract (Staff Transfer), Equality 8 12 21 23 12
of Accessibility, Pricing Structure
Library Modernisation
Customer Services
Universal Credits 12
Supporting People
Safer Communities
Locality Working (Update)
Police and Crime Commissioner/Panels
(Update)
Strategic Framework for Information and 24
Advice Services Framework
Serious Acquisitive Crime Figures 24 12
Reporting of Police Authority Meetings (Chief 12 21 23 12
Constable’s Report)
Localities and Neighbourhood Working
Review 2012
(referred to the Panel from the Overview and
Scrutiny Management Board 27 July 201 1)




Page 26

Work programme

Review into role of Community Infrastructure
and Community Anchor

(referred to the Panel from the Overview and
Scruting Management Board 27 July 201 1)

12

Review of Communications Methods around
Neighbourhood Working

(referred to the Panel from the Overview and
Scrutiny Management Board 27 July 201 1)

12

Task and Finish Group

Councillor Call for Action — Anti Social
Behaviour in Compton Vale

28

Social Media

Other

Bi Annual Scrutiny Reports

21

12

Appeal Against Council’s Response to Petition

12

Joint Finance and Performance Monitoring

21

23

12

City and Council Priorities

Reduce Inequalities

Value for Communities

* This/These items appear on the Work Programme for the first time.




	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	Appendix 1 to the minutes of 21.11.11

	5 TRACKING RESOLUTIONS AND FEEDBACK FROM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD
	6 PLYMOUTH LIFE CENTRE AND LEISURE RELATED PROJECTS PROGRAMME UPDATE
	7 JOINT FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT (FORMERLY COMMUNITY SERVICES)
	8 WORK PROGRAMME

